
Minutes of the NMT Planning Commission, Tuesday, November 3, 2015 1

North Middleton Township Planning Commission  
Township Building 
2051 Spring Road 
Carlisle, PA 17013 

 

Minutes of the Planning Commission 
Tuesday, November 3, 2015 

 
The meeting was held at the North Middleton Township building on Spring Road, in Carlisle, PA. 
 
Attendance 
 
Board Members-Harry Kelso (Chairman), Bradley Mitchell (Vice-Chairman), Ronald Anderson 
(Secretary), and Dennis Hurley 
 
Brehm-Lebo Engineering-Doug Brehm 
 
Solicitor-Mark W. Allshouse 
 
Codes Officer Rodney Borda was not present this evening. No representative from Cumberland County was 
present this evening.  
 
Visitors 
 
Pamela Martin-250 Cactus Hill Road, Carlisle, PA 
R. Scott Martin-250 Cactus Hill Road, Carlisle, PA 
Charles Junkins-311 Sawmill Road, Dillsburg, PA 
 
Call to Order 
 
Chairman Harry Kelso called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Public Input (non-agenda items) 
 
No members of the public came forward and no non-agenda items were presented at this time. 
 
Approval of the Minutes for Tuesday, August 4, 2015 
 
Mr. Kelso asked for any changes, corrections, or additions to the minutes from the Tuesday, August 4, 2015 
Planning Commission meeting. None were requested. Mr. Kelso asked for a motion.  
 
Bradley Mitchell moved to approve the August 4, 2015 minutes as presented. Ronald Anderson 
seconded. All votes were in favor, and the minutes were approved as written. 
 
Pending Applications 
 
#15-04: R. Scott & Pamela S. Martin, Final/Minor Subdivision & Lot Consolidation, 
Zoned:  Rural Resource, Total Acreage: 18.324, Expiration Date: December 31, 2015 
 
Commission member Pamela Martin attended this portion of the meeting as a member of the public, as the 
matter being considered pertains to her property.  
 



Minutes of the NMT Planning Commission, Tuesday, November 3, 2015 2

Charles Junkins came forward to represent this matter. He explained that the Martins own an amount of land 
off of Cactus Hill Road, and that one of the properties owned by the Martins is a one-story cottage on a small 
parcel of land in the flood plain. He stated that what is located on Lot 2A is an incomplete structure which 
was built over time with a permit for an accessory building. He further explained that combining the two 
properties would put two dwellings on one lot, which is not permitted. Mr. Junkins stated that Mr. Martin met 
with Codes Officer Rodney Borda and that Mr. Martin received a recommendation from Mr. Borda on how to 
proceed. At this point Mr. Junkins noted that the cottage along the creek is not really a “year-round habitable 
structure,” and indicated that the cottage and the incomplete accessory structure are going to switch 
facilities. In response to a question from Mr. Mitchell, Mr. Junkins stated that the kitchen facilities will be 
removed from the cottage, so that it is not considered a habitable dwelling. In response to an inquiry from Mr. 
Kelso, Mr. Junkins further explained that the structure up on the hill will become the habitable dwelling and 
the cottage along the creek will become something like a picnic pavilion to be used, but not habitable as a 
dwelling.  
 
At this point, Mr. Junkins stated that there are no lots being created, and no conveyance. He summarized 
that the Plan just adds the small piece along the creek to the property farther up the hill. Mr. Mitchell asked if 
it was correct that Lot 2A is being split off from the current existing lot. Mr. Junkins acknowledged that this 
was correct. Mr. Hurley asked what the incomplete accessory structure is going to be called. Mr. Junkins 
replied that it will become a dwelling once the improvements are made. He pointed out that there was a note 
in the Brehm-Lebo memo about that. Mr. Brehm spoke at this point. He stated that after some discussion 
among the parties involved, it was agreed that the cabin/cottage would become an accessory structure and 
would be either demolished or rendered “not a primary structure.” He added that the structure up on the hill, 
which on this plan is called an accessory, would be called the primary residence or structure on the property. 
Mr. Brehm stated that as a condition of approval, the Plan should be changed to show the revised wording. 
Mr. Hurley pointed out that the structure along the creek should no longer be called a “cottage” since that 
designation suggests a habitable dwelling. Mr. Brehm acknowledged that this was correct. He summarized 
that the structure up on the hill will be called the primary structure or dwelling, and the cottage will be called 
the accessory structure. Mr. Brehm stated that Mr. Borda will oversee the work on the cottage to insure that it 
is pulled back to the status of not being habitable.  
 
Mr. Kelso asked if it was correct that Lot 2A does not exist now. Mr. Junkins acknowledged that this was 
correct. He explained that it has been carved out of Lot 1. Mr. Kelso asked about the small lot along the 
creek being shown as Lot 2. Mr. Junkins stated that Lot 2 is a totally separate parcel. Mr. Mitchell asked Mr. 
Junkins about the number of dwellings in this area and what their utilization is. Mr. Junkins replied that he 
couldn’t answer that. He stated that there are a significant number of them and probably a half a dozen or so.  
 
Mr. Kelso asked Mr. Brehm for his comments. Mr. Brehm stated that he had received the Plan in July and 
that a memo had been issued in early August. He noted that these comments are reprinted in his memo of 
October 21, 2015. Mr. Brehm pointed out that this plan is similar to the one done for the Bellaire Park area. 
He noted that with the Bellaire Park plan there had been issues with the Zoning Ordinance requiring all 
manner of studies and things like that. He added that this was also a lot-addition type of situation. Mr. Brehm 
then referred to the structure issue on the Martin plan which had just been discussed. He said that the key 
point there, which led to a lot of access issue comments, was that if there were going to be two structures, 
one was going to be added, and that wouldn’t be permitted on a private right-of-way, since this area is well 
over the limit of three structures. Mr. Brehm explained that a meeting was held, and that a lot of the 
comments went away because the structure issue was worked out, which sort of made all of the right-of-way 
issues go away. He then stated that Mr. Junkins was advised to request certain waivers for some of the 
zoning requirements such as wetlands and steep slopes. He noted that this was also similar to the Bellaire 
Park plan. Mr. Brehm summarized that Mr. Junkins had addressed everything except signatures and fixing 
the structure labels. Mr. Mitchell asked Mr. Brehm if he had walked the area and agreed with the assessment 
that there are no wetlands and all of that. Mr. Brehm indicated that he agreed. He pointed out that the 
Applicant is not constructing anything and is moving the primary structure up the hill.  
 
Mr. Brehm stated that his memo was somewhat long, but between items becoming non-applicable after 
meeting, and the structure issue being worked out, there is not much left to do. Mr. Brehm then referred to 
Comment #3 and suggested that the labels be switched at the appropriate time as a condition of Final Plan 
approval. He also referred to Comment #16, which points out that the cottage does not show a 100-foot 



Minutes of the NMT Planning Commission, Tuesday, November 3, 2015 3

isolation distance for the septic system. Mr. Junkins questioned if this would be necessary since the cottage 
is being made into a non-habitable structure. Mr. Brehm indicated that he didn’t know at this point. Mr. Brehm 
then pointed out that the Applicant has requested three waivers. He listed these as follows: 
 

 Preliminary Plan 
 Recreational Fee 
 Identifying Steep Slope Protection Areas 

 
Mr. Brehm pointed out that all County comments have been addressed. Mr. Mitchell mentioned that he 
hadn’t seen a shortened version of the Brehm-Lebo memo. Mr. Brehm explained that he didn’t shorten the 
memo because the Planning Commission had not seen this plan at a meeting until tonight. He stated that 
basically five comments are left.  
 
The waivers were considered at this time. Regarding the requested waiver of the Preliminary Plan 
requirement, Sections 180-15 and 180-27.B.(11), Mr. Kelso asked for a motion. 
 
Dennis Hurley moved to recommend approval of the requested waiver of the requirement to provide 
a Preliminary Plan, and to allow the Plan to be considered as a Final Plan, Sections 180-15, and 180-
27.B.(11). Bradley Mitchell seconded. All votes were in favor, and the motion carried.  
 
Regarding the requested waiver of the requirement to pay a recreational fee, Section 180-41.C., Mr. Kelso 
asked for a motion.  
 
Bradley Mitchell moved to recommend approval of the requested waiver of the requirement to pay a 
recreational fee, Section 180-41.C. Dennis Hurley seconded. All votes were in favor, and the motion 
carried.  
 
Regarding the requested waiver of the requirement to identify steep slope protection areas, Section 180-
84.G.(2), Mr. Kelso asked for a motion.  
 
Bradley Mitchell moved to recommend approval of the requested waiver of the requirement to 
identify steep slope protection areas, Section 180-84.G.(2). Dennis Hurley seconded. All votes were in 
favor, and the motion carried.  
 
Regarding the Preliminary/Final Plan itself, Mr. Kelso suggested a motion to recommend approval based 
upon compliance with all of the comments from Brehm-Lebo, including the reversal of the labels on the two 
structures. At this point Mr. Brehm pointed out that a Deed of Consolidation is also required. He indicated 
that this is mentioned in his memo. In response to a question from Mr. Kelso, Solicitor Allshouse explained 
that the Deed of Consolidation has to be provided before the Plan is recorded.  
 
Bradley Mitchell moved to recommend approval of the R. Scott Martin & Pamela S. Martin Final/Minor 
Subdivision and Lot Consolidation Plan, based upon compliance with all comments from Brehm-
Lebo, including the requirement to correct the labels of the two existing structures, as well as the 
submission of a Deed of Consolidation. Dennis Hurley seconded. All votes were in favor, and the 
motion carried.  
 
Mr. Junkins thanked the Commission.  
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Prior to adjournment Mr. Kelso indicated that he wished to briefly discuss a matter that was not on the 
agenda. Pamela Martin joined the Commission for this portion of the meeting. Mr. Kelso indicated that he 
would like to discuss this further at a future meeting. He passed out copies of an ordinance that had recently 
been enacted by the Borough of Carlisle. A map was also handed out. He explained that the Borough has 
created a new zone in the area of the Masland property, and that the handout he provided is the information 
on this new zone. Mr. Kelso further explained that the Borough has asked the Township to look at its own 
zoning and possibly make the Township’s zoning a little more compatible with what the Borough’s zoning is. 
This was discussed at some length.  



Minutes of the NMT Planning Commission, Tuesday, November 3, 2015 4

Mr. Kelso noted the amount of work that goes into creating a new zone. He asked Mr. Brehm if he had 
looked at it. Mr. Brehm indicated that he had received it and had been asked to look at it by Township 
Manager Ealer. Mr. Brehm explained that what the Borough is asking is that the Township’s zoning be 
changed to something that is similar to the Borough’s Urban Mixed-Use zone, which is a relatively new zone 
that had been created a few years ago. He pointed out that the Borough is already proposing amendments 
and tweaks to the new zone. Mr. Brehm said he had suggested to Manager Ealer than any rezoning done by 
the Township be substantiated by at least parts of the Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Brehm also said he had 
suggested that the Township compare its zoning with the Borough’s zoning in this area, to see if they are 
compatible. He pointed out that they may not be. Mr. Brehm referred to the map he had received and noted 
that the areas along the Harrisburg Pike are the areas that are being suggested for rezoning. Mr. Mitchell 
pointed out that this is currently the Neighborhood Commercial area of the Township.  
 
Mr. Allshouse pointed out that there may be options other than adopting the Borough’s Urban Mixed-Use 
Zone, such as amending the Neighborhood Commercial Zone to possibly add a use that could be a 
Conditional Use. He noted that it is important to understand what use the Borough envisions as important to 
the development of the Route 11 corridor. Mr. Mitchell noted that any change to the Township’s 
Neighborhood Commercial zone would affect every area of the Township with that zoning designation. 
Solicitor Allshouse stated that as far as the amount of work, any change to an existing zoning is easier to do 
than adding a zoning that doesn’t exist under the Township’s Comprehensive Plan. He commented on this 
further. Mr. Allshouse pointed out that the Borough is already making changes to their ordinance. He 
suggested that no changes to the Township’s ordinance be considered until the Borough gets theirs 
straightened out. He also suggested that the Borough be approached to find out what they want and what 
their concern is, so that the Township can offer to think about possible changes. There was some brief 
discussion about what areas of the Township are currently zoned Neighborhood Commercial. Mr. Allshouse 
pointed out that the Zoning Map will have to be consulted next time to confirm where these currently are. No 
other action was taken this evening.  
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Chairman Kelso asked for any further business. None was offered. With no further business before the 
Planning Commission at this time, the meeting adjourned at 7:33 p.m. 
 

 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 
 
Ronald Anderson  
Secretary,  
North Middleton Township Planning Commission                            

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Michael S. Medvid  
Recording Secretary  


